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our�mission

To�be�the�Preferred�Construction�and�
Civil�Engineering�Company�in�Nigeria.

our�vision

To�consistently�exceed�our�clients�expectations�
by�delivering�the�highest�quality�construction�
service�in�an�ethical�manner�and�by�so�doing�
gain�the�trust�of�all�stakeholders.
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   2017 2016

Profit/(Loss)before Tax  107,178 43,502 

Dividend Per Share (kobo)  Nil Nil

Revenue  4,891,912 3,413,465 

   N'000  N�000

Profit/(Loss)after Tax  61,661 (7,693) 

Earnings Per Share (kobo)  0.42 (0.05) 

RESULT AT
A GLANCE
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AGENDA:

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1 Presentation of audited financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 
the reports of the Directors and Auditors 
thereon;

2.  Retirement of Directors by rotation and the 
election of Directors in place of those 
retiring;

3.  Appointment and fixing of remuneration for 
the Auditors; and

DATED THE 30th DAY OF APRIL 20108

4.  Election of members of the Audit 
Committee.

OLANIWUN AJAYI LP
Company Secretary

NOTE

Proxy: A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote 
at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote 
in his place. A proxy need not also be a member. A form of 
proxy is enclosed and if it is to be valid for the purposes of the 
Meeting, it must be completed, stamped and deposited to the 
registered office of the company at Plot D, Block 7, Industrial 
Crescent, Ilupeju Lagos, not less than 48 hours before the time 
fixed for holding the meeting.

Closure of Register of Members: For the purpose of 
attendance at the Annual General Meeting, the Register of 
Members will be closed from the 30th of April, 2018.

Election of Audit Committee: In accordance with Section 
359(5) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act [CAP C20, 
Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004], a nomination (in 
writing) by any member or a shareholder for appointment to 
the Audit Committee should reach the Company Secretary at 
least 14 days before the date of the Annual General Meeting.

‘Rights of Securities’ Holders to ask Questions: Securities� 
Holders have a right to ask questions not only at the Meeting, 
but also in writing prior to the Meeting, and such questions 
must be submitted to the Company on or before 31st of May, 
2018.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting of the Members of Arbico Plc is 
scheduled to hold on Thursday, 7th June, 2018 at Plot D, Block 7 Industrial 
Crescent, Ilupeju, Lagos State at 11.00am to transact the following business:

NOTICE OF ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING
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REGISTERED OFFICE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Plot L2, 401 CloseP. O. Box 9117, Lagos.

57, marina Lagos NigeriaIlupeju,

Banana Island

Lagos

AUDITORS

Lagos

REGISTRARS

Plot D, Block 7,

Cardinal Stone Registrars Limited

Industrial Crescent

P.O. Box 2442 Marina Lagos

Olaniwun Ajayi LP
The Adunola

Ikoyi, 

358 Herbert Macaulay Way Yaba,

Ernst & Young
10th & 13th Floor, UBA House

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Mr. Adebisi Adebutu Nigerian Director

Mr. Afolabi Aiyeola Nigerian Director

Chief Kesington Adebutu Nigerian Chairman

Mr. Alkimos Makaronidis Greek Managing Director

Elder N.C.U. Okoro Nigerian Director

Mr. Eyo Asuquo Nigerian Director

DIRECTORS
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

As a precursor to our normal business of the day, 
permit me to highlight some of the significant 
developments that have taken place in the past 
one-year.

Business Environment 

Today, I stand before you filled with pride. This is 
not just another AGM. It is a special one because, 
in a couple of months, Arbico Plc will be celebrat-
ing its 60th anniversary.

Our historic success would not have been possible 
without the ample support and cooperation of all 
stakeholders. It is indeed your unwavering faith 
and confidence in the company that gives us the 
zeal, inspiration and motivation to continually 
strive for excellence and on behalf of the Board 
and on my own behalf I would like to place on 
record my deep sense of gratitude to each and 
every one of you. 

I take this opportunity to make a very special 
mention of Elder Nathaniel C. Okoro and Mr 

Alkimos Makaronidis for their roles and immense 
contributions through thick and thin to the growth 
and expansion of your Company over the years. 

his is indeed a historic year in the life of our Tcompany. Your company marks a momen-
tous Diamond Jubilee, a long legacy of 

dedication, determination and devotion towards 
contributing to the infrastructural development of 
Nigeria.

Diamond Jubilee

This milestone year is a significant landmark in the 
life of any institution, and all of us can justifiably 
look back with pride at the momentous journey of 
six decades to become the preferred construction 
company in the country. 

It was 60 years ago that Mr B. C. Economides, 
started the Company as a small enterprise. He was 
a man of modest means but lofty ambitions. With 
little more than a visionary dream, inspiring 
leadership and undying determination, he strug-
gled to stabilize Arbico as a viable enterprise and 
went on to build a solid organization. When he 
passed away in 1994, Arbico was firmly estab-
lished as a reputed public company.

It has been a privilege for me to lead the Company 
for the last 5 years of momentous change. The 
Arbico of today is a successful, growing Corporate 
citizen with 2,100 shareholders, 193 direct 
employees and core competence in its industrial 
complex and luxury home lines of business. These 
are achievements that not many companies in 
Nigeria can claim. Arbico will now join the select 
group of public companies that have been in 
existence for 60 years.

Distinguished Shareholders, Ladies and Gentlemen,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I welcome all of you to the 40th Annual 
General Meeting of Arbico Plc and to present to you, the company's Annual 
Report and Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017. 
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Your Company recorded a 43.4% increase in 
Turnover (N4.89bn) and a profit after tax of N 
0.61bn which represents a 901% increase versus 
the loss position in the 2016 financial year.

Your Company returned to profitability in the 
2017 financial year. The strategic initiatives the 
Board and Management implemented during the 
year under review yielded positive results and we 
are confident that this will continue to sustain the 
profitability of the business in the coming years.

Our Performance

I have great respect for our employees. They have 
shown admirable resilience and flexibility by 
adapting to the new challenges and opportunities 
in the marketplace, focused on meeting customer 
expectations, and in the process, delivered excel-
lent results. Given the low operating margins in the 
highly competitive industry in which we operate, 
we cannot afford to pay exceptionally high salaries. 
So, it is not financial gains that is the main motiva-
tor of our people. Neither are they driven by tough 
orders coming from top management. What the 

A combination of the factors highlighted above 
coupled with Increased operating costs, foreign 
exchange losses, declining government, industrial 
and client spend against investment and develop-
ment adversely effected construction activities in 
the course of the year. So much for the financial figures, but numbers do 

not tell the full story. What they do not reveal are 
the underlying strengths and capabilities of the 
people behind the Company's performance.

Your company was not insulated from the difficult 
operating environment. In spite of the trying 
circumstances and increased competition for the 
fewer viable projects in the market, Arbico Plc was 
still successful in acquiring several projects with an 
increased order book of about 500%.

In June 2017 the federal budget of N7.4 trillion 
was signed into law. The budget was 23% higher 
than the prior year budget and about 27% was 
allocated to infrastructure development. Since 
construction activities depend directly or indirectly 
on the financial position of the Federal 
Government, the budget was expected to have a 
positive impact on the construction industry 
through government and industrial sector spend-
ing. However, the Federal Government was unable 
to fund and implement the Budget to its fullest 
potential. 

After several slow years, the Nigerian economy is 
showing definite signs of revival. The past year was 
one of the most challenging the business environ-
ment ever experienced. The country officially 
entered into recession, the dwindling economy 
brought new and tumultuous challenges, with far 
reaching consequences. The economy was 
occasioned by declining crude oil prices, Naira 
devaluation and a shortage of foreign currency, 
reduced industrial and commercial productivity, 
high inflation rate, high borrowing costs and 
shrinking consumer disposable income thereby 
magnifying hardships and making economic 
turnaround a difficult task for the Federal 
Government.

CHAIRMAN�S STATEMENT

500% 43.3%� 901%
INCREASE�IN�ORDER�BOOK
WHEN�COMPARED�TO�2016

INCREASE�IN�TURNOVER
WHEN�COMPARED�TO�2016

INCREASE�IN�PROFIT�AFTER�TAX
WHEN�COMPARED�TO�2016
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Sir Kesington Adebutu

This is perhaps, the most enduring legacy of the 
founder: The creation of an organization where 
people work with pride and passion. We have a 
culture that respects the individual; gives equal 
opportunities to all based on their merit; where 
people are selected on the basis of professional 
competence, integrity and commitment; and 
everyone is encouraged to work together in the 
interests of the Company and its clients.

Thank You.

Chairman, Board of Directors

I cannot end without extending my sincere thanks 
to my colleagues on the Board for their wise 
guidance and support in successfully steering the 
Corporate ship through both calm and stormy 

waters. Arbico's employees continue to deliver 
amazing performance and I am very proud of all of 
them. Our customers have taught us many useful 
lessons and kept us on our toes when we some-
times falter. And, of course, I am grateful to you, 
our faithful shareholders, for your continuing 
confidence in our Company.

Company's success is primarily due to is their total 
dedication to Arbico plc. There are many examples 
of employees rising above and beyond the call of 
duty to meet an important commitment. They do 
this voluntarily because they see Arbico as their 
Company. They are the reason for our success.

Conclusion 

There are many examples of employees rising above and 
beyond the call of duty to meet an important commitment. 
They do this voluntarily because they see Arbico as their 
Company. They are the reason for our success.

CHAIRMAN�S STATEMENT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ALKIMOS�MAKARONIDIS
MANAGING DIRECTOR

ELDER�N.C.U.�OKORO

SIR.�KESINGTON�A.�ADEBUTU
CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF DIRECTOR

AFOLABI�AIYEOLA

ADEBISI�ADEBUTU

EYO�ASUQUO
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HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT (HSE) REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

As regards services for the protection of safety at 
work, in 2017 a total of 1.6 Million Man-hour was 
recorded and significantly higher than previous years.

The result was linked to the numerous initiatives 
under-taken during 2017 aimed at maintaining the 
HSE standards in all Arbico Plc Locations.

1.  OHSAS 18001:2007 � For Occupational Health 
and Safety (PECB) Cert. No C402-OHSMS31-05-
18.

Arbico Plc comprehensively manages health, safety 
and environment (HSE) as a critical part of its process. 
In 2016/2017, the company started the process of ISO 
9001-2015 QMS (Quality Management System) and 
OHSAS 18001-2007 OHS-MS (Occupational Health 
and Safety Management System) Certifications 
respectively. To meet these standard, a systematic 
approach of continual performance improvement 
was employed.

The following KEY elements are required in the 
process. 

OUR CERTIFICATIONS

2. ISO 9001:2015 � For Quality Management 
System (PECB) Cert. No C401-QMS164-05-18

3. Membership – British Safety Council (BSC) 
Cert. No SO 411920

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT (HSE)

ACT PLAN

CHECK DO

Evaluate

Apply lessons learned

Modify as necessary

Establish a baseline

Identify priorities

Set improvement goals 
and standards

Implement Actions

Plans to achieve goals

Monitor and measure

Find and fix

Document results

Continual
Improvement

OHSAS 18001
CERTIFIED
PECB

ISO 9001
CERTIFIED
PECB
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The company Top Management is committed to the 
implementation of the management systems and its 
further development to improve the company�s 
ability and enhance customer satisfaction with 
meeting the specified quality on time and with 
minimal acceptable impact on the environment and 
without compromising the health and safety of the 
workforce and others involved in our business 
activities.

Today, Arbico Plc is a proud holder of an international 
OHSAS 18001 and ISO 9001 Certificates.

Arbico�s performance in Health, Safety and 
Environment (HSE) remained strong in 2017 with 
most projects meeting safety objectives such as ZERO 
FATALITIES and minimal LOSS TIME due to INJURY 
(LTI).

VISIBLE MANAGEMENT LEADERSHIP
Within the period under review, OHSA 18001 and 
ISO 9001 certification that started in 2016/2017 was 
completed and certificates issued in 2018 accord-
ingly.

In 2017 Arbico Plc was given the best HSE 
Contractors award at NBC Ikeja on PPE Compliance 
and good HSE practice.

It obviously benchmarks of our HSE and Quality 
performance which demonstrates our commitments 
towards Health, Safety and Quality at high level. It will 
also help in prequalification process especially to 
qualify among giant stakeholders in the industry. 
(When recognition Matters).

Managing Director
Alkimos Makaronidis

HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT (HSE) REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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REPORT ON RISK MANAGEMENT

Each project is distinctively executed after careful 
identification of the most likely risks affecting the 
project and documentation of characteristics of each 
risk as may be different from those of other projects.

Ÿ New technology

Ÿ Inadequate site investigation

Ÿ Uncertainty over the source and availability of 
materials

Ÿ Availability and fluctuation in foreign exchange

Ÿ Inadequate contractor experience
ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS:
Ÿ Weather and seasonal implications

Ÿ Constraints on the availability and employment of 
expatriate staff

Ÿ Local taxes

Ÿ Unfamiliarity with local conditions

Ÿ Availability of sufficient transportation facilities

TECHNICAL RISKS:

In light of these, we have been able, in most of our 
projects, to manage every of the following project 
associated risks:

Ÿ Changes in project scope and requirements

As a result of proper identification of risks pertaining to 
each project, Arbico Plc is able to quantify the risks in 
order to evaluate the possible outcomes of the project.

MANAGEMENT RELATED RISKS:

Ÿ Natural disasters

Ÿ Insufficiently skilled staff

Ÿ Availability of resources � particularly construction 
equipment spare parts, fuel and labour.

Ÿ Inadequately defined roles and responsibilities

LOGICAL RISKS:

Ÿ Uncertain productivity of resourcesŸ Design errors and omissions

A lot of effort has been put in place to ensure 
risk awareness programme is organised from 
time to time for all members of staff at all 

levels including the new employees emphasizing the 
major sources of risks such as:

Ÿ Subcontractors

Ÿ Appropriateness of specifications
Ÿ Incomplete design

Ÿ Industrial relations problems

FINANCIAL RISKS:

Ÿ Delays in payment
Ÿ Inflation

SOCIAL-POLITICAL RISKS:

Ÿ Difficulties in disposing of plant and equipment
Ÿ Insistence on use of local firms and agents.

Alkimos Makaronidis
Managing Director

Ÿ Customs and import restrictions and procedures

Having the understanding of the nature of common sources of risks in 
construction industry, it is our culture to take precautionary measure before the 
occurrence of the risk so as to drastically minimise if not totally eliminate the 
negative effect of the risk.
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Alkimos Makaronidis
Managing Director

Ÿ To make sure everyone within the organization 
knows what to do if a complaint is received

Our policy is:
Ÿ To provide a fair complaints procedure which is 

clear and easy to use for anyone wishing to make 
a complaint

Ÿ To make sure all complaints are investigated fairly 
and in a timely way

Ÿ To make sure that complaints are, wherever 
possible, resolved and that relationships are 
repaired

Ÿ To gather information which helps us to improve 
what we do

Ÿ To publicize the existence of our complaints 
procedure so that people know how to contact us 
to make a complaint

Arbico Plc views complaints as an opportunity 
to learn and improve for the future, as well 
as a chance to put things right for the person 

or organization that has made the complaint.

A complaint is any expression of dissatisfaction, 
whether justified or not, about any aspect of Arbico 
Plc actions or service from any person or organization 
who has a legitimate interest in Arbico Plc.

Definition of a Complaint

Channels of complaint
A complaint can be received verbally, by phone, by 
email or in writing. This policy does not cover 
complaints from staff, who should use the company 
Discipline and Grievance policies.

Confidentiality
All complaint information will be handled sensitively, 
telling only those who need to know and following 
any relevant data protection requirements.

Responsibility & Review
Overall responsibility for this policy and its 
implementation lies with the Managing Director. This 
policy is reviewed regularly and updated as required.

Complaints Procedure of Arbico Plc

Publicized Contact Details for Complaints:
Written complaints may be sent to Arbico Plc, Plot D 
Block 7 Industrial crescent Ilupeju Lagos or by e-mail 
at info@arbico.ng. This policy is also available on the 
company website www.arbico.ng

COMPLAINANT MANAGEMENT POLICY
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The Company depends upon the conduct and 
diligence of its employees, in both their professional  
and personal capacities, to ensure full compliance  
with this  Policy. This Policy provides procedures and  
guidelines with respect to transactions in the 
Company's securities, the protection of material, 
non-public information and the standard of conduct 
expected of the Company's employees in  this highly  
sensitive  area. It is the personal obligation and  
responsibility of each employee to act in a manner 
consistent with this Policy.

This Policy applies to all members of the 
Company's Board of Directors, director emeriti 
and employees, as well as members of such 

persons' immediate families and households. All 
references in this Policy to employees of the 
Company should be read to include all such persons 
listed in the preceding sentence.

Security and Exchange Regulations:  The Nigerian 
Investment and Securities Act of 2007, as amended 
prohibits and makes it unlawful for any person to 
make false statements or omit to state material facts 
in connection with the purchase or sale of any 
security. There are no limits on the size of a transac-
tion that will trigger insider trading liability.

POLICIES REGARDING TRANSACTIONS IN THE 
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

The following policies apply to all transactions, direct 
or indirect, in all of the Company's securities. 

Prohibitions for All Employees:

No Trading on Material, Non-Public Information. 
No employee who is aware of any material, non- 
public information concerning the Company or a 
third-party with whom the Company does business, 
shall engage in any transaction in the Company's or 
such third-party's securities, including any offer to 
purchase or sell, during any period commencing with 
the date that he or she obtains.

No Tipping. No employee shall disclose (�tip�) 
material, non-public information to any other person 
where such information may be used by such person 
to his or her benefit by trading in the securities of the 
company to which such information relates, nor shall 
an employee make any recommendations or express 
any opinions as to trading in the Company's securities 
to any other person on the basis of material, non- 
public information.

No Short Sales. No employee shall engage in the 
short sale of the Company's securities. A short sale is 
a sale of securities not owned by the seller or, if 
owned, not delivered against such sale within twenty 

Such material, non-public information and ending at 
the beginning of the date of public disclosure of that 
information. After termination of employment, any 
employee who is in possession of material, nonpublic 
information is prohibited from trading in Company 
securities until that information has become public or 
is no longer material.

INSIDER TRADING AND
CONFIDENTIALITY POLICY

As a public company, Arbico Plc is subject to various federal and state laws and 
regulations governing trading in its securities. It is the policy of Arbio Plc (the 
�Company�) to comply fully, and to assist its employees in complying fully, with 
these laws and regulations. 

2017 Annual Report & Financial Statements | 17ARBICO PLC | Celebrating 60 Years in Construction



No Margin Purchases. No employee shall purchase 
the Company's securities on margin. This means such 
persons are prohibited from borrowing from a 
brokerage firm, bank or other entity in order to 
purchase the Company's securities.

No Investments in Derivatives of the Company's 
Securities. No employee shall invest in Company- 
based derivative securities. �Derivative Securities� are 
options, warrants, stock appreciation rights or similar 
rights whose value is derived from the value of an 
equity security, such as the Company's common 
stock. This prohibition includes, but is not limited to, 
trading in Company-based put or call option con-
tracts, trading in straddles and the like. However, 
holding and exercising stock options, restricted stock 
units or other derivative securities granted under the 
Company's equity compensation plans is not 
prohibited by this Policy.

If an employee has any doubt about whether certain 
information is non-public or material, such doubt 
should be resolved in favor of not communicating 
such information or trading without discussing with 
the assigned compliance officer or rising with in-
house counsel. Questions concerning what is or is not 
material, non-public information should be directed 
to the Company's Secretary.

All employees of the Company have ethical and legal 
responsibilities to maintain the confidentiality of 
material, non-public information.

POLICIES REGARDING THE USE, DISCLOSURE 
AND PROTECTION OF MATERIAL, NON-PUBLIC 
INFORMATION

(20) days thereafter (a �short against the box�). Short 
sales of the Company's securities evidence an 
expectation on the part of the seller that the securities 
will decline in value, and, therefore, signal to the 
market that the seller has no confidence in the 
Company or its short-term prospects. In addition, 
short sales may reduce the seller's incentive to 
improve the Company's performance.

Use and Disclosure of Material, Non-Public 
Information. As explained previously, under no 
circumstances may an employee use material, non-
public information about the Company for his or her 
personal benefit. Moreover, except as specifically 
authorized or in the performance of regular corpo-
rate duties, under no circumstances may an 
employee release to others information that might 
affect the Company's securities. Therefore, it is  
important that an employee not disclose material,  
non-public information to anyone, including other 

employees of the Company, unless the other 
employee needs to know such information in order to 
fulfill his or her job responsibilities. Under no other 
circumstances should such information be disclosed 
to anyone, including family, relatives or business or 
social acquaintances. In maintaining the confidential-
ity of the information, the individual in possession of 
such information shall not affirm or  deny statements 
made by others, either directly or  through electronic 
means, if such affirmation or denial would result in 
the disclosure of material, non-public information.

Material, Non-Public Information Regarding 
Other Companies. In the ordinary course of doing 
business, employees may come into possession of 
material, non-public information with respect to 
other companies. An individual receiving material, 
non-public information in such a manner has the 
same duty not to disclose the information to others or 
to use that information in connection with securities 
transactions of such other company as such individual 
has with respect to material, non-public information 
about the Company.

If the Company is in the process of negotiating a 
significant transaction with another company, 
employees are cautioned not to trade in the stock of 
that company if they are in possession of material, 
non-public information concerning such company.

If an employee is not certain whether it is permissible 
to trade in the stock of such company, the employee 
should contact the Company's Legal Department 
before making any trades.

INSIDER TRADING & CONFIDENTIALITY POLICY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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Unauthorized Disclosure of Internal Information. 
Unauthorized disclosure of internal information about 
the Company may create serious problems for the 
Company whether or not the information is used to 
facilitate improper trading in securities of the 
Company. Therefore, it shall be the duty of each 
person employed or affiliated with the Company to 
maintain the confidentiality of information relating to 
the Company or obtained through a relationship of 
confidence. Company  personnel should not discuss 
internal Company matters or developments with 
anyone outside the Company, except in the perfor-
mance  of regular corporate duties.

Precautions to Prevent Misuse or Unauthorized 
Disclosure of Sensitive Information. When an 
employee is involved in a matter or transaction which 
is sensitive and, if disclosed, could reasonably be 
expected to have an effect on the market price of the 
securities of the Company or any other company 
involved in the transaction, that individual should 
consider taking extraordinary precautions to prevent 
misuse or unauthorized disclosure of such informa-
tion. Such measures include the following:

1. Maintaining files securely and avoiding storing 
information on computer systems that can be 
accessed by other individuals;

2. Avoiding the discussion of confidential matters in 
areas where the conversation could possibly be 
overheard;

3. Not gossiping about Company affairs; and

www.arbico.ng

Inadvertent Disclosure of Material, Non-Public 
Information. If material, non-public information 
regarding the Company is inadvertently disclosed, no 
matter what the circumstances, by any employee, the 
person making or discovering that disclosure should 
immediately report the facts to the Company 
Secretary.

Reporting of Violations

We would like to report that in accordance with the 
listing rules, directors and parties concerned complied 
in full with the Insider Trading and Confidentiality 
Policy.

Internet. Any written or verbal statement that would 
be prohibited under the law or under this Policy is 
equally prohibited if made on the Internet or by social 
media.

This policy is also available on the company website

Any person who believes that a violation of this policy 
has taken place shall report such violation promptly 
to the company secretary. 

Any questions concerning this Policy should be 
addressed to the Company Secretary.

Alkimos Makaronidis
Managing Director

Inquiries Regarding Material, Non-public 
Information. When an inquiry is received regarding 
information that may be material, it should be 
referred, without comment, to the Company's 
Secretary.

4. Restricting the copying and distribution of 
sensitive documents within the Company.

Statement of Compliance

INSIDER TRADING & CONFIDENTIALITY POLICY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

In conclusion, Arbico Plc. adopts innovative 
methods to create opportunities that give young 
Nigerians access to a range of programs 
designed to develop their competencies and 
skills while adding value to the company and to 
our great nation, Nigeria.

Apprenticeship Programme

At Arbico Plc, corporate social 
responsibility is a vital part of our 
company culture. We assign great 

importance to the interests of our stakeholders 
i.e. our shareholders, employees, customers, 
suppliers, teaming partners, and the wider 
community; and we actively seek opportunities 
both to improve the environment and to 
contribute to the development of the 
communities in which we do business.
In 2017, Arbico Plc, focused on tackling 
unemployment through two initiatives:

Ÿ Apprenticeship Programme
Ÿ Graduate Trainee Programme

In 2017, selected youths in technical schools 
within Lagos Nigeria enrolled in Arbico Plc 
apprenticeship programme to build a career and 
learn skills in Mechanical engineering, Electrical 
installation and Civil works. These individuals are 
currently going through the practical intricacies 
of their chosen trades after which they would be 
retained as part of the workforce.

Graduate Trainee Programme

As part of Arbico Plc's commitment to tackle 
unemployment, the company focused on giving 
young talents an opportunity to build a career in 
various capacities in the company after which 
the most successful will be offered permanent 
employment.

Alkimos Makaronidis 
Managing Director   
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FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017



The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

LEGAL FORM

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activity of the company is building and civil engineering works. The company has developed capabilities in 
the planning and construction of a broad spectrum of infrastructure projects for Federal and State Governments, 
Multinational Companies, Industrial Groups and high net-worth individuals.

The revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 increased to N4.89 billion (43.3%) from N3.41 billion in the year 
ended 31 December 2016.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

The company was incorporated on 18 June 1958 as a private limited company under the Companies Ordinance CAP 38 
(now the Companies and Allied Matters Act). In 1978, the Company converted to a public limited liability company and its 
shares became listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange.

Comparative highlights of the operational results of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are 
as stated in the table below.
 

Revenue   4,891,912 3,413,465

Mr. Alkimos Makaronidis Greek  Managing Director 

    2017 2016

   
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax  61,661 (7,693)

The names of the Directors at the date of this report and those who held office during the year are as follows:

Mr. Eyo Asuquo   

    N'000 N'000

  

Profit/(loss) for the year  61,661 (7,693)

 

Profit before tax  107,178 43,502

Chief Kesington Adebutu   Chairman

Mr. Afolabi Aiyeola   
Mr. Adebisi Adebutu   

Operating profit  106,839 39,898

Elder N.C.U Okoro   

   

DIRECTORS 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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Chief Kesington Adebutu INDIRECT R28 LIMITED N/A N/A

Mr. Afolabi Aiyeola INDIRECT R28 LIMITED N/A N/A

Mr. Eyo Asuquo INDIRECT R28 LIMITED N/A N/A

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

SUBSTANTIAL SHARE HOLDING

No significant change apart from normal additions and disposals in the ordinary course of business as shown in Note 13.

   Unit %

A.O.G Limited 14,850,000 10.00

Name of Directors appointment   Represented  shares shares

Elder N.C.U Okoro DIRECT N/A 107,360 107,360

 

     31st Dec. 2017 31st Dec. 2016

The shareholdings of the Directors in the Company are as follow.
 

DIRECTORS' INTEREST

   Status of Company Number of Number of

Mr. Alkimos Makaronidis INDIRECT R28 LIMITED N/A N/A

Mr. Adebisi Adebutu INDIRECT R28 LIMITED N/A N/A

As at 31 December 2017, the following held 5% or more of the issued capital of the Company:

R28 Limited 103,900,000 69.97

Director direct shareholding 107,360 0.07

    
Range  No. of Holders Percent Unit Percent  

1 - 5 00  433   35.96    124,818     0.08

5,001 -10,000 79   6.56      671,958     0.45

REGISTER  RANGE ANALYSIS  AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

Nigerians  29,750,000 20.03
   
   148,500,000 100.00
   

10,001 -15,000 22    1.83     262,686     0.18

Free Float 29,642,640 19.96
   
   148,500,000 100.00

501  - 5,000 557   46.26   1,231,614     0.83

20,001 - 25,000 10   0.83      240,358     0.16
25,001 - 30,000 13 1.08     360,144     0.24

15,001 - 20,000 19   1.58     355,414     0.24

30,001 - 35,000 5 0.42      162,764     0.11

FREE FLOAT REPORT
   Unit %
Strategic shareholder 118,750,000 79.97

35,001 - 40,000 6 0.50      230,962     0.16
40,001 - 148,500,000 60 4.98       144,859,282    97.55

Grand Total: 1,204   100.00 148,500,000 100.00

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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Health, safety and welfare

Employment of physically challenged Persons

In addition to medical insurance scheme given to members of staff in mostly private clinics and hospitals, the company 
maintains well equipped first aid boxes. All essential safety regulations are being observed to guarantee maximum 
protection of personnel and also to protect the company's assets.

EMPLOYMENT AND EMPLOYEES

It is the Company's policy that there is no discrimination in considering applications for employment including those from 
disabled persons. All employees whether or not disabled are given equal opportunities to develop their expertise and 
knowledge and to qualify for promotion in furtherance of their careers. No disabled person was in the employment of the 
Company as at 31 December 2017.
 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
     

As stated in Note 32, the directors are not aware of any matters of circumstances arising since the end of the reporting 
period, not otherwise dealt with in the annual financial statements which significantly affect the financial position of the 
Company or the results of its operations.

Training
The company is committed to ensuring that staff receives both in-house and external training to help improve their skills.

The company donated the sum of N =5,000,000 to Lagos polo club for sponsorship of Lagos polo club tournament, 

AUDITORS

FRC/2013/00000000001615.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

N =50,000 to Institute of Quantity surveyor (Lagos chapter) and N =250,000 to Kings college old Boys Association 1986, 
making a total Donations of N =5,300,000 during the year under review (2016: N =1,500,000).

The auditors, Ernst & Young (Chartered Accountants), having indicated their willingness, will continue in office as the 
Company's auditors in accordance with Section 357(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the 
Federation of Nigeria 2004.

   
CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

In compliance with Section 38(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 
2004, the Company did not make any donations or gifts to any political association or for any political purpose during the 
year under review.

COMPANY SECRETARY

29th March 2018 

   

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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THE BOARD

The Company has continued to remain a publicly quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange and affirms its commitment to 
increasing shareholder value through open and transparent Corporate Governance Practices.

Arbico Plc is committed to the highest standards of Corporate Governance to ensure proper oversight of the 
Company�s operations and to create long term sustainable value for all shareholders and stakeholders. In line 
with best practices, there is a separation of power between the Chairman and the Managing Director, as well as a 

unique blend of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The individual and collective academic qualifications and wealth 
of diverse skills and experience of the Board ensure independent thought and exceptional decision making.

The Board is committed to best practices of Corporate Governance in carrying out its responsibility of determining the 
strategic objectives and policies of the Company. The Board is accountable to the shareholders and is responsible for 
creating and delivering sustainable value through proper management of the Company's affairs. The Board also provides 
oversight of senior management of the Company.

The Board carries out its oversight functions using its various Board Committees. This ensures efficiency and allows for 
deeper attention to targeted matters for the Board. The Committees are set up in line with best practices and have well 
defined terms of reference defining their scope and responsibilities. The Committees meet quarterly, and additional 
meetings are convened as required.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The Board comprises of the Chairman, three (3) Executive Directors and three (2) Non-Executive Directors.

The Board of Directors in driving the strategic direction of the Company ensures continual building of strong and stable 
relationships with shareholders, stakeholders and the community at large.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

NAME DESIGNATION
MEETINGS

NUMBER OF DATES OF MEETINGS

9th Mar. 1st June 23rd Oct. 5th Dec.

Chief Kesington Adebutu Chairman 4 P *P P *P

Mr. Alkimos Makaronidis Managing 4 P P P *P

Elder N.C.U. Okoro Director 4 P P P P

Mr. Adebisi Adebutu Director 4 P P P P

Mr. Afolabi Aiyeola Director 4 P P P P

Mr. Eyo Asuquo Director 4 P P P P

* P Attendance was by proxy

BOARD ATTENDANCE REPORT
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The committee met in accordance with the provisions of section 359 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 
Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004.

Mr. Vitalis Ayiam Member

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee in line with Section 359 (5) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act is mandated to examine the 
auditor�s report and make recommendations thereon to the General Meeting. The Committee consists of 5 members. 

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board carries out its oversight functions through the under-listed committees:

MEMBERSHIP OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
Mr. Azubuike Okpalaoka Chairman
Mr. Eyo Asuquo Member
Mr. Ademola Olugboyega Member
Elder Nathaniel C.U. Okoro Member

NAME DESIGNATION
MEETINGS

NUMBER OF DATES OF MEETINGS

31st Jan. 4th Mar. 30th May 30th Aug.

Mr. Azubuike Okpalaoka Chairman 4 P P P P

Mr. Eyo Asuquo Member 4 P P P P

Mr. Ademola Olugboyega Member 4 P P P P

Elder Nathaniel C.U. Okoro Member 4 P P P P

Mr. Vitalis Ayiam Member 4 P P P P

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS ATTENDANCE

Mr. Adebisi Adebutu Member
Secretary to the Committee Member

Elder Nathaniel C.U. Okoro Chairman

The Committee which comprises of 3 members is charged with all necessary powers appropriate for carrying out all 
duties and responsibilities in formulation of the governance/remuneration functions of the Company.

GOVERNANCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

MEMBERS OF GOVERNANCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

NAME DESIGNATION
MEETINGS

NUMBER OF DATES OF MEETINGS

1st March 27th May

Elder N.C.U. Okoro Chairman 2 P P

Mr. Adebisi Adebutu Member 2 P P

REPORT OF THE BOARD GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS ATTENDANCE:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE: 
 Mr. Eyo Asuquo Member

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

 Mr. Afolabi Aiyeola Member
 Mr. Alkimos Makaronidis Member 

The Committee is made up of 4 members. The mandate of the committee is to oversee matters relating to risk 
management and internal control, as well as the safeguarding of assets, information technology systems, accounting 
systems, accounting policy and internal audit.

 Secretary to the committee Member

REPORT OF THE BOARD RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEMBERS ATTENDANCE

NAME DESIGNATION NUMBER OF
MEETINGS

DATES OF MEETINGS

1st March 27th May

Mr Eyo Asuquo Chairman 2 P P

Mr. Afolabi Aiyeola Member 2 P P

Mr. Alkimos Makaronidis Member 2 P P

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Company will not remain a going concern for at 
least twelve months from the date of this statement.

The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of 
the Company and of its profit for the year ended 31 December 2017. The directors further accept responsibility for the 
maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as 
adequate systems of internal financial control.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors:

Afolabi Aiyeola    Eyo Asuquo

29th March 2018

Executive Director   Director
FRC/2015/IODN/00000012842  FRC/2017/CIBN/00000000016193

 
The Directors accepts responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate 
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in conformity with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in the manner required by Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of 
the Federation of Nigeria 2004, the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, No 6, 2011, the regulations of Security and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Nigerian Stock Exchange.

The Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 require the Directors to 
prepare financial statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of 
the Company at the end of the year and of its profit or loss. The responsibilities include ensuring that the Company:

a) keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Company and 
comply with the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 
2004;

b) establishes adequate internal controls to safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other 
irregularities; and

c) Prepares its financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments 
and estimates, and are consistently applied.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arbico Plc (�the Company�) which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA) and other 
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of Arbico Plc. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the 
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the 
matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.  

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Arbico Plc as at 31 
December 2017 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standards, and the relevant provisions of the Companies and Allied 
Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria 
Act No. 6, 2011. 

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the 
matter is provided in that context. 

INDEPENDENT  AUDITORS� REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ARBICO PLC

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

At the year-end the Company had contract receivables of 
N1.120billion before provisions for impairment of 
N28.609million (see Note 18 of the financial statements). 

Determination of provision for impairment of 
contract receivables

We tested aged balances, where no provision was recognized, to 
check that there were no indicators of impairment. This included 
verifying if payments had been received since the year-end, reviewing 
historical payment patterns and any correspondence with customers 
on expected settlement dates. 
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

Determination of provision for impairment of 
contract receivables

As these contracts sometimes span a number of reporting 
periods, changes in the estimate of total contract costs or 
the inappropriate recording of costs around the year end 
could result in material amounts of revenue being 
recorded in the incorrect period. 

The construction industry continues to be impacted by 
certain macroeconomic challenges meaning the 
Company experience uncertainty over the collectability of 
contract receivables from specific customers. 

The determination as to whether a contract receivable is 
collectable involves management judgement. Specific 
factors management considers include the age of the 
balance, location of customers, existence of disputes, 
recent historical payment patters and any other available 
information concerning the creditworthiness of 
counterparties. Management uses this information to 
determine whether a provision for impairment is required 
either for a specific transaction or for a customer's balance 
overall. 

The recognition of revenue is largely dependent on the 
estimated stage of completion of each contract which is 
determined based on the proportion of contract costs 
incurred for work performed to date compared to the 
estimated total contract costs.

Revenue recognition under long term contract 
accounting

We focused on this area because it requires a high level of 
management judgement and due to the materiality of the 
amounts involved.

We focused on the recognition of revenue because where 
long term contract accounting is used, estimates and 
judgements are made in determining the amount of 
revenue to be recorded. 

From the work we have performed we consider the level of 
provisioning to be acceptable. 

We tested revenue recognized under long term contract accounting 
as follows:

ii. prior year provision amounts released where a customer had 
paid. 

Ÿ Tested whether the work allocated to contracts had been carried 
out in the period in which the revenue had been recognized. 

Ÿ Agreed that the revenue recognized was consistent with the 
calculated stage of completion. 

Ÿ For raw material in stock at year end and allocated to contracts, 
tested to confirm that these were made specifically for the 
contract and therefore that revenue was recorded in the 
appropriate period. 

We found no instances of inappropriate revenue recognition. 

Ÿ Examined any loss-making contracts to determine the level of 
provisioning required and also assessed the actual profit or loss 
achieved on contracts that were completed in the year compared 
to the forecast position in the prior year. 

Ÿ Assessed the estimates of costs to completion for major contracts 
and also assessed the historical accuracy of the estimates of total 
contract costs. 

Ÿ Tested the calculation of stage of completion including testing 
the costs incurred and recorded against the contract for 
occurrence and accuracy, assessing the basis for determining the 
total contract cost and re-performing the percentage of 
completion calculation. 

We selected a sample of the larger contract receivable balances 
where a provision for impairment of contract receivables was 
recognized and understood the rationale behind management's 
judgement. In order to evaluate the appropriateness of these 
judgements, we verified whether balances were overdue, the 
customer's historical payment patterns and whether any post year-
end payments had been received up to the date of completing our 
audit procedures. We also obtained corroborative evidence, 
including correspondence supporting any disputes between he 
parties involved, attempts by management to recover the amounts 
outstanding and on the credit status of significant counterparties, 
where available. 

i. how much of prior years' provision had been utilized for bad 
debt write offs during the year; and 

In assessing the appropriateness of the overall provision for 
impairment, we considered the consistency of management's 
application of policy for recognizing provision with the prior year. 
Specifically, we considered: 
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In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

Other Information

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company's internal control. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the 
other information obtained prior to the date of this Auditors' Report, we conclude that there is material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standards, relevant provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 
Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 and in compliance with the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, No. 6, 
2011, and for such internal control as the Directors determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Report of the Directors, the 
Report of the Audit Committee, the Statement of Value Added and Five-Year Financial Summary as required by the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA), and the Corporate Governance Report as required by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, which we obtained prior to the date of this report, and the Annual Report, which is expected to be 
made available to us after that date. Other information does not include the financial statements and our Auditor' report 
thereon.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

Ÿ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the 

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Directors. 

2017 Annual Report & Financial Statements | 31ARBICO PLC | Celebrating 60 Years in Construction



audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

Ÿ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the Company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have compiled with relevant ethical requirements regards 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

i. we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposed of our audit; 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirement of Schedule 6 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the 
Federation of Nigeria 2004, we confirm that: 

ii. in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Company, in so far as it appears from our examination 
of those books; and 

iii. the Company's statement of financial position and statements of comprehensive income are in agreement with the 
books of account.

29 March 2018
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER , 2017

We have examined the Auditors� Report for the year ended 31 December 2017 in accordance with the provision 
of section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004.

In addition, we have reviewed the Audited Financial Statements of the Company, for the year ended 31 December 2017, 
and the reports thereon, and hereby state as follows:

2. The scope and planning of audit requirement were in our opinion adequate.

1. The accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with legal requirement and agreed ethical 
practice.

5. We have made the recommendations required to be made in respect of the external auditors.

Chairman, Audit Committee
Mr. Azubuike Okpalaoka

FRC /2015/CISN/000000114

27th March 2018

3. We have reviewed the findings on Management matters, in conjunction with the external Auditors and are satisfied 
with the response of Management thereon.

Members of Audit Committee 

4.  The Company�s system of accounting and internal controls was adequate.

Mr. Azubuike Okpalaoka Chairman
Mr. Eyo Asuquo Member

Elder Nathaniel C.U. Okoro Member

 

Mr. Ademola Olugboyega Member

 

Mr. Vitalis Ayiam Member
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CERTIFICATE OF ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Pursuant to Section7 (2) of the FRCN Act, 2011, we have reviewed the Annual Reports and Financial Statements of 
Arbico Plc for the year ended December 31, 2017.Based on our knowledge, our Financial Statements do not 
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary and are not misleading 

with respect to the period covered by the report.

Based on the foregoing, we, the undersigned, hereby certify that to the best of our knowledge and belief the information 
contained in the Financial Statements of our company for the year ended December 31, 2017, appear to be true, correct 
and up to date.

We are responsible for designing the internal controls and procedures surrounding the financial reporting process and 
assessing these controls (as required by Section7(2) (f) of the FRCN Act, 2011) and have designed such internal controls 
and procedures, or caused such controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the Company is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared. The controls, which are properly designed, have been operating effectively in the 
period of intended reliance.

The Company's Code of conduct and Business best Practices formulated by the Board has been implemented as part of 
the corporate governance practices of the Company throughout the period of intended reliance and the Directors and 
Key Executives of the Company had acted honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the whole Company. Our 
Financial Statements, and other financial information included therein, fairly present in all material respects the financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the company as at and beyond the period presented in the Financial 
Statements.

Afolabi Aiyeola

FRC/2015/IODN/00000012842
Director

Aderemi Idowu G
Financial Officers 
FRC/2016/ICAN/00000014416
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Administrative expenses  9  (750,336) (762,529)

Other comprehensive income   - -

     2017 2016

   

Gross profit   743,930 741,147

   

    Notes N'000 N'000

     

Cost of sales  7 (4,147,982) 2,672,318)

     

   

Profit before tax    107,178 43,502

Income tax expense   11  (45,517) (51,195)

Other operating income  8  113,245 61,280

     

Finance income   10 339 3,604

Revenue    6 4,891,912 3,413,465

Operating (loss)/profit   106,839 39,898

     

Profit/(Loss) for the year    61,661 (7,693)

   

     

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax  61,661 (7,693)

     

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted, earnings/(loss) for the year attributable 

to ordinary equity holders of the Company (Naira)  12 0.42 (0.05)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Deferred tax asset  11 49,154 49,154

Current Assets   

Amounts due from customers for contract work  17 1,357,364 487,287

     1,355,839 1,188,904

    Notes N'000 N'000

Property, plant and equipment  13   1,304,224 1,136,701

Unquoted investment  15 2,000 2,000

     2017 2016

Intangible assets  14  461 1,049

ASSETS  
Non-current Assets   

     

Inventories  16 31,075 11,497

Trade and other receivables  18  2,191,981 1.949,509
Prepayments  19 5,040 4,881
Cash and short-term deposits  20 410,697 285,713     
     3,996,157 2,738,887
   
Total assets   5,351,996 3,927,791
     
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   

Equity   
Issued capital  21 74,250 74,250
Share premium  21 141,184 141,184
Asset revaluation surplus   861,934 861,934

Amounts due to customers for contract work  17 - -

Trade and other payables  23 1,985,949 1,395,143

Share deposit  22 1,950,000 1,950,000

     

Income tax payable  11 45,828 51,195

     3,274,842 1,745,757

Advance from customers  17 - 166,541

Current Liabilities   

Accumulated losses   (950,214) (1,011,875)
   

Non-current liabilities   

Advance from customers  17 1,243,065 299,419

Total equity   127,154 65,493

     

     

     

     1,950,000 2,116,541

 

   
Total liabilities   5,224,842 3,862,298

Total equity and liabilities   5,351,996 3,927,791
   

 FRC/2015/IODN/00000012842 FRC/2017/CIBN/00000000016193 FRC/2016/ICAN/00000014416
Managing Director  Director Director Financial Officer

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 28th March 2018.

Alkimos Makaronidis Afolabi Aiyeola  Eyo Asuquo Aderemi Idowu G
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

  

At 31 December 2016  74,250 141,184 861,934 (1,011,875) 65,493
   

Total comprehensive income  - - - (7,693) (7,693)
  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

   capital  premium  revaluation Accumulated  
   (Note 21) (Note 21) surplus losses Total

As at 1 January 2017  74,250 141,184 861,934 (1,011,875) 65,493

   N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

  

Other comprehensive income  - - - - -

Total comprehensive income  - - - 61,661 61,661
  

   Issued  Share Asset

Profit for the year  - - - 61,661 61,661

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

  
At 31 December 2017  74,250 141,184 861,934 (950,214) 127,154

   capital  premium  revaluation Accumulated  

Loss for the year  - - - (7,693) (7,693)

   (Note 21) (Note 21) surplus losses Total
   N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

   

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

   Issued  Share Asset

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

As at 1 January 2016  74,250 141,184 861,934 (1,004,182) 73,186

Other comprehensive income  - - - - -
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Investing activities

Advance payment in fixed deposit (restricted)    (18,672) 112,684

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   105,875 (102,421)

Income tax paid   11 (8,443) (12,416)

   

Purchase of intangible asset  14 - (842)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   178,635 310,878

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  13 (410,505) (117,415)

   

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities   534,103  (102,252)

Net foreign exchange difference   437 (29,822)

Net cash flows used in investing activities   (428,228) (169)

  
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  20 284,947 178,635

Finance income   339 3,604
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   610 1,800

    Notes 2017 2016

net cash flows:   
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  13 242,982 235,209
Amortisation of intangible asset  14 588 733

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment  8 (610) (1,589)
Finance income  10 (339) (3,604)
Bad debt   9 - 72,478

Net unrealised foreign exchange loss   9 (437)    29,822

     N'000 N'000

   
Working Capital Adjustments   
Increase in trade and other receivables   (349,092) (47,514)
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments   (159) 7,852

(Increase)Decrease in amounts due from customers for contract work  (870,077) 123,307
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables   590,806 (217,274)

Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to

Decrease in advance from customers   777,105 (318,622)

Impairment of receivable  9 64,179 28,609

 
     542,546 (89,836)
   

Decrease in amounts due to customers for contract work   - (41,476)

Profit before tax   107,178 43,502

Increase  in inventories   (19,578) (1,269)

Operating Activities   
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

 3.1 Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group�s entities at their respective functional 
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), the provisions of the Financial Reporting 
Council of Nigeria Act, No. 6 2011, the provision of the Companies and Allied and Matters Act, CAP 20 and the Laws of the 
Federation of Nigeria 2004 as applicable. The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for 
land and buildings that have been measured at fair value.

Arbico Plc is a company incorporated on 18 June 1958 in Nigeria and commenced business thereafter. The company's 
shares were quoted on the Stock Exchange on November 30, 1978.

2. Basis of preparation

Its principal activities comprise construction and civil engineering as well as investment in and operation of infrastructure. 
The registered office is located at Plot D Block 7 Industrial Crescent Ilupeju, Lagos. 

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

1. Corporate information

The financial statements are presented in Naira and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (N'000), except when 
otherwise indicated.

 The Company's financial statements are presented in Naira, which is also the Company's functional currency. 
 

i) Transactions and balances 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the 
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss 
is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 
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 3.2.1 Construction Contracts

 The company principally operates fixed price contracts, if the outcome of such a contract can be reliably measured, 
revenue associated with the construction contract is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
activity at year end (the percentage of completion method).

(I) the total contract revenue can be measured reliably;
(ii) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the entity;

The outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably when: 

 3.2 Revenue recognition

(iii) the costs to complete the  contract and the  stage of completion can be measured reliably; and 
(iv) the contract costs attributable to the  contract can be clearly  identified and measured reliably  so that actual 

contract costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates.

 When the outcome of a construction cannot be estimated reliably (principally during early stages of a contract), 
contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable.

(c) the contracts are performed concurrently or in a continuous sequence

(a) The separate proposals have been submitted for each asset

(c) The costs and revenues of each asset can be identified

 Contract revenue � Contract revenue corresponds to the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and any 
variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable that they will result in 
revenue; and they are capable of being reliably measured.

(b) Each asset has been subject to separate negotiation and the contractor and customer have been able to accept or 
reject that part of the contract relating to each asset

Assets covered by a single contract are treated separately when:

(b) the contracts are so closely interrelated that they are, in effect, part of a single project with an overall profit margin,

The three criteria must be met before combination can occur.

 Contract costs � Contract costs include costs that relate directly to the specific contract and costs that are attributable 
to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a specific contract 
comprise; site Labour costs (including site supervision); costs of materials used in construction; costs of design, cost of 
depreciation on plant and machinery and technical assistance that is directly related to the contract.

 The company contracts are typically negotiated for the construction of a single asset or a group of assets which are 
closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design, technology and function. In certain circumstances, the 
percentage of completion method is applied to the separately identifiable components of a single contract or to a group 
of contracts together in order to reflect the substance of a contract or a group of contracts.

(a) the group of contracts is negotiated as a single package; 

 Losses on contracts are recognised in the period in which they first become foreseeable. Contract losses are determined 
to be the amount by which estimated direct and indirect costs of the contract exceed the estimated total revenues that 
will be generated by the contract. During the period until the percentage of completion calculation is completed, all 
contract costs are accumulated in contract work in progress. The costs of the contract attributable to the stage of 

A group of contracts are treated as a single construction contract when:

 In applying the percentage of completion method, revenue recognised corresponds to the total contract revenue (as 
defined below) multiplied by the actual completion rate based on survey of work done.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

40 | 2017 Annual Report & Financial Statements ARBICO PLC | Celebrating 60 Years in Construction



 In the course of business the company sometimes concedes to the use of its equipment by a third party at an agreed 
fee. The agreed fee is usually recognised as revenue accruing to the company and in an event of damage the third party 
would be held liable for all repairs to bring the equipment to its functional state.

 3.2.4 Investment income

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset�s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance is charged to profit or loss during the financial period 
in which they are incurred. Losses or gains on disposals of assets are recognised in the Profit or Loss.

 3.4 Advance payments received

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.  

 Advanced payments received are amounts received before the related work is performed and are assessed on initial 
recognition to determine whether it is probable that it will be repaid in cash or another financial asset. In this instance, 
the advance payment is classified as a non-trading financial liability that is carried at amortised cost. If it is probable that 
the advance payment will be repaid with goods or services, the liability is carried at historic cost.

 3.3 Gross amount due from customers

 Investment income comprises realised and unrealised gains on investments, interest income and dividend income. 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate 
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to that asset�s net carrying amount. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is 
established.

 Gross amount due from customers represent work-in-progress (valued on the basis of quantity surveyor�s estimate of 
the quantum of work done but not yet certified) plus recognised profits, less recognised losses and progress billings. 
Claims receivable arising on contracts are normally taken to income when agreed. In the case of unprofitable contracts, 
full provision is made for anticipated future losses after taking into account a prudent estimate of claims arising in 
respect of such contracts.

 3.5 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

 Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, 
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

 3.2.3 Income from rentals of equipment

 3.2.2 Interest Income

contract completion are transferred to cost of sales. Where the costs incurred plus recognised profits are greater than 
the sum of the recognised losses and progress billings, then this amount is shown in debtors as amounts due from 
customers for contract work. Where the sum of recognised losses and progress billings is greater, then this amount is 
shown in creditors as amounts due to customers for contract work.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The depreciable amount (cost less residual value) should be allocated on a systematic basis over the asset's useful life. 
The residual value and the useful life of an asset should be reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if 
expectations differ from previous estimates, any change is accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate under 
IAS 8. The depreciation method used should reflect the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by 
the entity.

3.5.2 Depreciation

2) Office furniture and equipment
3) Plant and equipment
4) IT infrastructures

Each category of assets is further divided into separate components that can be identified and replaced without 
necessarily replacing the whole assets. Each component is associated with a cost and depreciated separately.  Item that 
would be replaced within one year are classified as consumables and expensed to profit or loss. 

For all depreciable assets:

The Company has divided its PPE to the following category:

3.5.1 Category of PPE

1) Motor vehicles

5) Land and building

The depreciation method should be reviewed at least annually and, if the pattern of consumption of benefits has 
changed, the depreciation method should be changed prospectively as a change in estimate under IAS 8. Depreciation 
should be charged to the profit or loss, unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

  Depreciation table

  Motor Car  25 20 20 25 - 20 - -  

  Jeep  25 20 20 - - 20 - 25

           Transmission
  Motor Vehicle

  Motor Cycle  50 50 - - - - - - 

  Truck  25 20 20 25 25 20 20 - 
  Ford  25 20 20 25 - 20 - -  

  Depreciation begins when the asset is available for use and continues until the asset is derecognised, even if it is 
idle.

  Deprecation  Engine Body Interior Gear Box  PUMP/JACK Chassis Bucket Aix 
  Rate  % % % % % % % %

  Desktop Computer - 25 25 25 25 - - - - -
  Laptop Computer 25 0 25 25 25 - - - - -

  Deprecation   Board Drive  Heater Panel Colour Board
  Rate % % % % % % % % % %

  Depreciation rate % % % % % % % % % %

  I.T Infrastructures

  Photocopy Machine  - 25 - - - 25 25 25 25 25

  Screen Monitor Mother Hard Memory Lamp Display Plating Main Heater

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Land    100 years  1%

Office Furniture and Equipment

Components    Useful Life  Deprecation Rate

Depreciation rate for Building

Celling     20 years  5%
Civil Works (Wall)    50 years  2%
Floor/Tiles     20 years  5%

Roof    25 years  2.5%

Doors/Window    20 years  5%
Fence    10 years  10%

Depreciation rate for Land 

Components    Useful Life  Deprecation Rate

Office furniture is not componentised and it is depreciated at 20% for a useful life of 5years.

    % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %

Tower Crane - 20 - - - 25 - 25 - - - - - - - - 25 - -

Mobile Crane  25 20 - - 20 - - - 50 - - 25 - - - - - - -

Generator 25 - - - - - - - - - - - - 25 - - - - -

  Engine Body Belt  Sail Interior Motor Mixer Cable Box /jack Chassis Host Bucket -nator Stand Roller Panel room tank

JCB Machine 25 20 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  20 20 - - - - -  -  -  

Mixer 25 - -  -  - - - - - - - - - 15 - - 10 - -

Scaffolding 20 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Power Fluting Machine  50 25 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

     Camaya   Electrical    Gear Pump    Alter    Operating Control Water

Battery Charging machine 50 25 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Jack Hammer  25 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Plant Tools and Equipment

Double Drum Roller  25 20  - - - - - - 25 - 20  - - - - 20 - - -

Vibrator Machine  25 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Dumber 25 20  - - - - - - 25 - 25 - 20 - - - - - –

Leveling Instrument  50 25 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Batching Plant - - 25  20 - - 20 - - 25 20 - - - 20 - - 25 -
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Nature and Subsequent measurement

3.6.1. Financial assets

3.5.4.  Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software with a finite useful life and are amortised over 4years using straight 
line methods. An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised.

Assets are derecognised on disposal or when it is withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected 
from its disposal. The gain or loss on disposal is the difference between the proceeds and the carrying amount and 
should be recognised in the profit or loss. 

3.5.3.  De recognition (retirements and disposals)

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset that has no physical substance. An intangible asset is 
recognised when it is identifiable and the company has control over the asset and also probable that economic 
benefits will flow to the Company. The cost of the asset must be measured reliably.

3.5.5. Amortisation and derecognition of intangible assets

 3.6. Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when the company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company determines the classification of its 
financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All financial assets and liabilities are recognised initially at fair 
value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for financial assets and liabilities classified as fair value 
through profit or loss.

The Company�s financial assets include unquoted investments, trade and other receivables and cash and short-term 
deposits. After initial measurement, the subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification 
as follows:

The company evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the near term is still 
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Company is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive 
markets, the Company may elect to reclassify these financial assets if the management has the ability and intention 
to hold the assets for foreseeable future or until maturity.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or 
losses recognised in OCI and credited in the AFS reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time, the 
cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other operating income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, 
when the cumulative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve to profit or loss.

3.6.1.1  AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets include unquoted investments. Equity investments classified as AFS are those that are neither 
classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss.

3.6.1.2  Loans and receivables

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.6.1.4 Cash and Short Term Deposit

discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included in finance income in the statement of comprehensive income. The losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in administrative expenses for receivables.

3.6.1.3 Trade Receivable

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less allowance 
for impairment. The carrying amount of trade receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When 
trade receivables are uncollectible, it is written off as �administrative expenses� in profit or loss. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in other operating income.

3.6.2  De-recognition of Financial Assets 

Cash and Short term deposit includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current 
liabilities in the statement of financial position. For the purpose of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 
cash and short-term deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any). Cash and Cash 
equivalents are measured at amortised cost. 

The Company derecognises a financial asset if and only if the Company's contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expires or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' 
arrangement; and either 
(a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

  

The company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are 
individually significant, and collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the company 
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether 
significant or not, it then includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and 
collectively assesses them for impairment.

    

3.6.3  Impairment of Financial Assets

(b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the 
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be 
required to repay.

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are 
recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred 
after the initial recognition of the asset (a �loss event�) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.     

3.6.3.1  Financial assets carried at amortised cost  

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from a financial asset, it evaluates if and to what 
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of 
the Company�s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. 
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that 
the Company has retained.
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3.6.4  Financial Liabilities 
     

Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be 
recognised are not included in the collective assessment of impairment. If there is objective evidence that an 
impairment loss on loans and receivables has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the assets� carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the 
financial asset�s original effective interest rate.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor�s credit rating), 
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The reversal shall not 
result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the 
impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in 
profit or loss.  

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss 
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.  

3.6.4.1  Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for loan impairment. Such loans are written 
off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the provision for loan impairment 
in profit or loss.  

 3.6.4.2  Financial Liabilities-Subsequent measurement 

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is impaired. In the case of investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged 
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If 
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss � measured as the difference 
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously 
recognised in profit or loss � is removed from comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment 
losses recognised in profit or loss on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not subsequently reversed 
through profit or loss, any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. However, if in a subsequent period the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was 
recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. 

           

Trade and other payables

3.6.3.2  Financial assets carried at fair value  

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or 
loans and borrowings as appropriate. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial 
recognition.

The Company�s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank overdrafts and loans and borrowings.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business 
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year (or in the normal 
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operating cycle of the business, if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade and other 
payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 
an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or loss.

3.6.4.3  De-recognition of financial liabilities

3.6.5  Offsetting of financial instruments      

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis 
or, realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

3.6.6  Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 
market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in profit and loss.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

3.7.1  Pension fund obligations

 3.7  Employees Benefits

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the company pays fixed contributions into a separate 
entity. The company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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3.7.2  Short-term employee benefits

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in profit or loss. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable 
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

3.8.2  Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

3.8.1  Current Income Tax

Current income tax and education tax for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates 
taxable income.

sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior period.

The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after service is rendered) such as paid 
vacation, leave pay, sick leave and bonuses are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and is not 
discounted. The expected cost of short-term accumulating compensated absences is recognised as an expense as 
the employees render service that increases their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when 
the absences occur. The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or 
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance. Provisions for leave pay and bonuses 
are recognised as a liability in the financial statements.
             

 3.8  Taxation

The Company in line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act, 2014 has instituted a defined contribution 
pension scheme for its employees.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that 
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and 
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

Ÿ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of 
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Ÿ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss.
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Inventories which comprise construction materials are recognised at lower of cost and net realizable value after 
making adequate provision for obsolescence and damaged items. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in 
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to 
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are 
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added 
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 

 3.11 Provision and Contingency Liability

 3.10 Inventories

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. 
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current income 
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority.

3.8.3  Value Added Tax

 3.9  Leasing

Ÿ When the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation 
authority, in which case, the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part 
of the expense item, as applicable

Ÿ When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of value added tax included 

Company as a Lessor 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases 
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Benefits received and receivable as an 
incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax, except:

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Provisions are  recognised when the  company has  a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the  amount of the  obligation. Where the company expects some 
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a 
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is 
presented in the profit or loss net of any reimbursement.
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Ÿ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

 3.12  Current Versus Non-current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current 
classification. An asset is current when it is:
Ÿ Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Ÿ It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

Ÿ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Ÿ Expected to be sold within twelve months after the reporting period, or

 3.13  Impairment of non-financial assets

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when:

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

Ÿ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

Ÿ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for  a t  l ea s t  twe l ve 
months after the reporting period.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods can be reversed up to the original carrying amount, had the 
impairment loss not been recognised. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset�s revised carrying amount, less any residual 
value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

The company assesses assets or group of assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If any such indication of impairment exists, the 
Company makes an estimate of the asset�s recoverable amount. Individual assets are grouped for impairment 
assessment purposes at the lowest level (Cash generating unit) at which there are identifiable cash flows that are 
largely independent of the cash flows of other group of assets. An asset�s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair 
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are adjusted for the risks specific to the asset and are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money. Impairment 
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

4.  Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates And Assumptions

The preparation of the company financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability 
affected in future periods.

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after reporting 
period.

In the process of applying the company�s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, 
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

  4.1  Revenue recognition

When a contract is judged to be a construction contract, then revenue is recognised using the percentage of 
completion method. The percentage of completion method is made by reference to the stage of completion of 

Judgments other than estimates
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the 
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable 
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

 4.3  Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount 
and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide contract relationships and the long-term nature and complexity 
of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or 
future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already 
recorded. The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits 
by the tax authorities of the respective bodies. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as 
experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the 
responsible tax authority.

 4.4  Review of the useful lives of tangible assets

The determination as to whether a contract receivable is collectable involves management judgement. Specific 
factors management considers include the age of the balance, location of customers, existence of disputes, recent 
historical payment patterns and any other available information concerning the creditworthiness of counterparties. 
Management uses this information to determine whether a provision for impairment is required either for a specific 
transaction or for a customer�s balance overall. 

The Company applied for the first time certain amendments to the standards, which are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The Company has not early adopted any standards, interpretations or 
amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

5a. Standards that became effective on 1 January 2017

projects determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred to date and the estimated costs to complete. 
The percentage of completion and the revenue to recognize are determined on the basis of a large number of 
estimates. Consequently, the Company has implemented an internal financial budgeting and reporting system.

 4.5  Impairment of contract receivables

Another major assumption made by directors in the preparation of the financial statements is the determination of 
the useful life of the plant property and equipment. These estimates are made from judgments based on past 
experience with similar assets, technological obsolescence and declining residual values.

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which 
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is 
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm�s length transaction of similar assets or observable 
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted 
cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years.

 4.2  Impairment of non-financial assets
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The following new standards and amendments became effective as of 1 January 2017:

 The nature and the impact of each amendment is described below:

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative
The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities, 
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). 
These amendments did not affect the Company�s financial statements. On initial application of the amendment, 
entities are not required to provide comparative information for preceding periods. These amendments are effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with early application permitted. Application of 
amendments did not result in additional disclosure because there were no changes in the Company�s liabilities 
arising from financing activities.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits 
against which it may make deductions on the reversal of deductible temporary difference related to unrealized 
losses. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits 
and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their 
carrying amount.

Annual Improvements Cycle - 2014-2016 

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12, other than those in paragraphs B10�B16,apply 
to an entity�s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an 
associate) that is classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company�s 
financial statements are disclosed below. The company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they 
become effective.

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which reflects all phases of the financial 
instruments project and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous 
versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and 
hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application 
permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. The adoption of 
IFRS 9 will have no impact on the classification and measurement of the Company�s financial assets, but no impact 
on the classification and measurement of the Company�s financial liabilities.

Classification and Measurement

 

5b. Standards issued but not yet effective

These amendments did not affect the Company�s financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The company does not expect a material impact on its statement of financial position or equity on applying the 
classification and measurement requirement of IFRS 9. The financial assets classified in the books are basically:

Ÿ  Unquoted investment
Ÿ  Loans and trade receivables

Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure 
requirements in IFRS 12
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 Loans and trade receivables
These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows and are expected to give rise to cash flow 
representing solely payments of obligation. The company analyzed the contractual cash flow characteristics of those 
instruments and concluded that they meet the criteria for amortized cost measurement under IFRS 9. Therefore, 
reclassification for these instruments is not required.

Impairment
IFRS 9 requires the Company to record expected credit losses on all its loans and trade receivables, either on a 12-
month or lifetime basis. The company will apply the simplified approach and record lifetime expected losses on all 
contract receivables. The company has determined that, due to the unsecured nature of its receivables and the key 
macroeconomics variables, the loss allowance will increase by N66million with corresponding related decrease in 
equity.

The equity shares in non-listed companies are intended to be held for the foreseeable future. The investment is 
measured at cost since it is not quoted in an active market and the fair value of the asset cannot be reliably measured. 
No impairment losses were recognized in profit or loss during periods for these investments.  Therefore, the 
application of IFRS 9 will not have a significant impact.

The company is in the business of provision of building and civil engineering works.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Unquoted investment

The outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably when: 

 In applying output method, revenue recognized corresponds to the total contract revenue (as defined below) 
multiplied by the actual completion rate based on survey of work done.

Contract revenue � Contract revenue corresponds to the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and any 
variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable that they will result in 
revenue; and they are capable of being reliably measured.

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014, and amended in April 2016, and establishes a five steps model to account for 
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which an entity exchanges goods or services in favor of a customer.

There is no impact on the 2017 financial statement since all excess/additional impairments have been applied.

Construction contracts

 

The company principally operates fixed price contracts however sometimes the contract cost are varied due to 
additional works, If the outcome of such a contract can be reliably measured, revenue associated with the 
construction contract is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at year end 
(output method e.g. Surveys of Work completed to date).In accordance with IFRS 15 revenue is recognized: 

(I) The contract obligation have been performed. 

The new revenue standard supersedes all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full 
retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on after 1 
January 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The company plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective 
date using the full retrospective method. During 2016, the Company performed a preliminary assessment of IFRS 15, 
which was continued with a more detailed analysis completed in 2017.

(ii) The work done can been accurately estimated or surveyed.
(iii) The company�s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the company has 

an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date

When the work done does not satisfy these conditions the contact cost to date is the held as a current assets 
(recoverable cost).
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In the course of executing the project the company may earn Income from direct supervision of nominated 
subcontracts and earn some fees for attendance to work  

The three criteria must be met before combination can occur.

In the course of business the company sometimes concedes to the use of its equipment by a third party at an agreed 
fee. The agreed fee is usually recognized as revenue accruing to the company and in an event of damage the third 
party would be held liable for all repairs to bring the equipment to its functional state.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts 
the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter 
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

Investment income comprises realized and unrealized gains on investments, interest income and dividend income. 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate 
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to that asset�s net carrying amount. Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment 
is established.

(b) Each asset has been subject to separate negotiation and the contractor and customer have been able to accept 
or reject that part of the contract relating to each asset

A group of contracts are treated as a single construction contract when:

(c) The costs and revenues of each asset can be identified

(e) the contracts are so closely interrelated that they are, in effect, part of a single project with an overall profit 
margin

(d) the group of contracts is negotiated as a single package; 

Implementation on adjustment of 2017 Figures 

There are two transition approaches from IAS 11 to IFRS 15. They are:

Income from rentals of equipment

Full Retrospective - The Financial statement are presented as if IFRS has always been applied. Comparatives is 
restated.

Contract cost for which their obligations have not been expressly stated or cannot be reliable measured are held as 
recoverable cost under current assets 

Investment income

Income on Project attendance    

(f) the contracts are performed concurrently or in a continuous sequence

The company contracts are typically negotiated for the construction of a single asset or a group of assets which are 
closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design, technology and function. In certain circumstances, 
the percentage of completion method is applied to the separately identifiable components of a single contract or to 
a group of contracts together in order to reflect the substance of a contract or a group of contracts.

Assets covered by a single contract are treated separately when:
(a) The separate proposals have been submitted for each asset

 Contract costs � Contract costs include costs that relate directly to the specific contract and costs that are 
attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a specific 
contract comprise; site Labour costs (including site supervision); costs of materials used in construction; costs of 
design, cost of depreciation on plant and machinery and technical assistance that is directly related to the contract.
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The company have elected to apply the modified Retrospective approach in the implementation of IFRS15 for year 
ended 31st December 2017

The company would consider the contract price and modifications for both completed and ongoing projects and 
apply expedients as started in the standards. After calculating the effects in retrospect the reverse would be adjusted 
and a reconciliation for the movement in the reserves would be presented with full disclosure in the 2018 accounts. 

Presentation and disclosure requirements

IFRS 16 Leases

The presentation and disclosure requirements in IFRS 15 are more detailed than under current IFRS. The presentation 
requirements represent a significant change from current practice and significantly increase the volume of 
disclosures required in the Company financial statements. Many of the disclosure requirements in IFRS 15 are new 
and the Company has assessed that the impact of some of these disclosures requirement will be significant. In 
addition as required by IFRS 15 the Company will disaggregate revenue recognized from contracts with customers 
into categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flow are affected by 
economic factor. In 2018 the company will continue testing of appropriate systems, internal controls, policies and 
procedures necessary to collect and disclose the required information.

Modified Retrospective � The Financial statement are retrospectively adjusted but the cumulative impact is 
recognized at the date of initial application. Comparative figures are not restated and are presented using the 
existing standards. 

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement 
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving 
the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the 
accounting for finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees � leases of 
�low-value� assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or 
less). 

At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease 
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use 
asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation 
expense on the right-of-use asset .Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence 
of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an 
index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the 
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

This standard does not have an impact on the Company�s financial statements.

IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but not 
before an entity applies IFRS 15. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a 
modified retrospective approach. The standard�s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today�s accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will 
continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of 
leases: operating and finance leases.
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 Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle (issued in December 2016)
 
These improvements include:
 

The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related 
asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability 
relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the 
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments 
or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance 
consideration. Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis.

Alternatively, an entity may apply the Interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that 
are initially recognised on or after:
(i) The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation Or
(ii) The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of 

the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early application of 
interpretation is permitted and must be disclosed. However, since the Company�s current practice is in line with the 
Interpretation, the Company does not expect any effect on its consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects 
the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically 
include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The Interpretation specifically addresses the following:
� Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
� The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

� How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

Other new pronouncement that would not have impact on the Company�s financial statements are highlighted 
below.

� How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more 
other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be 
followed. The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but 
certain transition reliefs are available. The Company will apply interpretation from its effective date. 

NEW PRONUNCEMENT EFFECTIVE DATE

AIP IAS 12 Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on 
financial instruments classified as equity

1 January 2019

for capitalisation
AIP IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible 1 January 2019
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 Construction contracts   4,891,912 3,413,465

 Repairs to plant tools and Equipment for site use   159,847 65,099

 Project technical expenses refer to expenses relating to overseas technical expenses.

8 Other operating income  

 Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment   610 1,589

 Project technical expenses   102,864  115,829

  

 Exchange gain unrealised   437 -

7 Cost of sales  
 
 Contract expenses   3,704,473 2,320,245

 

   

      N'000 N'000

6 Revenue

     4,147,982 2,672,318

     2017 2016

 Depreciation of plant, tools and equipment    180,798 171,145

 

 

 Insurance claim   19,065 -
 Other income   32,863 8,431
 Rent income   16,685 46,073
 Sale of scraps   43,585 5,187

     113,245 61,280

 Other income refers to sale of diesel.
 
9 Administrative expenses 
  

Advertisement and communication   8,879 9,620
Amortization of intangible asset   - 733

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment   62,184 64,064
Donations and subscriptions   8,998 6,081
Employee benefits expense (Note 9a)   220,830 193,729

Exchange loss � realised   4,569 33,633
Legal and professional charges   10,209 8,010

Audit fee   8,500 8,000

Bank charges   13,727 15,151

Exchange loss - unrealised   4,395 29,822

 

Lighting & heating   52,393 21,999

Court Case settlement   1,000 -

    750,336 762,529

Bad debt   - 72,478

Tender expenses   23,871 5,689
Traveling and accommodation   25,905 26,443

Rent, rates and insurance   37,399 42,295
Office expenses   83,358 104,724

Impairment of receivable   64,179 28,609

Repairs and maintenance   119,940 91,449
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 Current income tax charge   37,931 42,753

 Staff welfare   858 2,959

9a Employee benefit expense

     2017 2016

11 Income tax

 Interest on short term deposits   339 3,604

 

10 Finance income  

 Labour   - 1,041

     220,830 193,729

 
     2017 2016
     N'000 N'000

 Staff training   8,918 1,889

     N'000 N'000

 Pension cost   12,850 11,883
 Medical   10,293 7,322

 Industrial training cost   2,529 -

     

 Salaries & wages   185,382 168,635

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are:

 Profit or loss  
 Current income tax:  

 

 Accounting profit before tax    107,178 43,502
  

 Education tax   7,586 8,442

     N'000 N'000

 Effect of tax incentives � Utilised capital allowance   (75,862) (84,425)

 
 Income tax expense reported in profit or loss   45,517 51,195

 Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences   - -

     45,517 51,195

 Reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit for the year ended 31  December 2017 
is as follows:

 

 At Nigeria�s statutory income tax rate of 30% (2016: 30%)  32,153 13,051

 Education tax   7,586 8,442

 Income tax expense reported in profit or loss   45,517 51,195

 Non-deductible expenses    81,954 114,127

 Deferred tax:  

  

   

 The effective tax rate   43%  118%

     2017 2016

 Reconciliation of current income tax liabilities   

 Effect of tax loss   (314) -

 Withholding tax off-set   (42,441) (58,106)
 Payment during the year   (8,443) (12,416)

 As at 1 January    51,195 70,522
   

 As at 31 December    45,828 51,195

 Charge for the year   45,517 51,195
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    financial position comprehensive income

 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which 
the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 
utilised. The company has, accordingly, recognised a deferred tax asset of N49.15 million (2016: N49.15 million) 
relating to net deductible temporary difference that are considered to be realisable against the Company�s taxable 
profits, which is expected to arise in future periods.  

 The Company�s retained earnings as at the end of the year reflects a negative value due to loss made. Deferred tax 
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they may not be used to offset taxable profits. The 
unrecognised portion of deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2017 is N 134.8 million (2016: N37.74 million).

   2017 2016 2017 2016

 

 Net deferred tax asset 49,154 49,154 - -

 Deferred tax income

 Deferred tax
 Deferred tax relates to the following:
    Statement of Statement of

 

 Deferred tax assets   49,154 49,154

 Deferred tax liabilities, net   49,154 49,154

     N'000 N'000

 Deferred tax liabilities   - -

 
 Reconciliation of deferred tax asset, net 
     2017 2016

   
 As at 1 January   49,154 49,154

 Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows: 

     N'000 N'000

 Credit/(charge) for the year   - -

   N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Property, plant and equipment 49,154 49,154 - -

   

     2017 2016

 As at 31 December   49,154 49,154
  

12 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity 
holders of the Company by the average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

   

 Average number of ordinary shares in issue   148,500 148,500
     

        

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic earnings per share computations:

     N'000 N'000
     2017 2016

 Net profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders    61,661 (7,693)

 Basic and diluted earnings/(loss)  per share (Naira)   0.42 (0.05)
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13. Property, plant and equipment
       Office
    Land & Plant, tool &  Motor  furniture & IT  
    building equipment vehicles equipment infrastructure Total
    N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

14 Intangible Assets

 Additions during the year   -

Depreciation       

Disposals during the year   - (389) (10,892) - - (11,281)

 

 At 31 December 2016   11,489

Disposals during the year   - - (630) - - (630)

 

At 1 January 2016   36,675 503,370 203,964 597 22,163 766,769

Disposals for the year   - - (630) - - (630)

At 31 December 2016   733,500 1,046,798 316,106 2,616 28,589 2,127,609

At 31 December 2016   689,490 372,614 69,254 1,692 3,651 1,136,701

Disposals for the year   - (331) (10,739) - - (11,070)

At 1 January 2016   733,500 933,117 325,558 1,395 27,905 2,021,475

 Cost : 

Carrying value:

    Computer software

Additions during the year   - 114,070 1,440 1,221 684 117,415

 At 1 January 2016   10,647

Additions during the year   - 335,144 71,118 - 4,243 410,505

 

At 31 December 2017   682,155 526,372 89,351 1,223 5,123 1,304,224

At 31 December 2017   733,500 1,381,942 386,594 2,616 32,832 2,537,484

 Additions during the year   842

At 31 December 2017   51,345 855,570 297,243 1,393 27,709 1,233,260

Charge for the year   7,335 181,386 51,021 469 2,771 242,982
At 31 December 2016   44,010 674,184 246,852 924 24,938 990,908

Charge for the year   7,335 171,145 53,627 327 2,775 235,209

Cost/revaluation:      

There are no restrictions on title to the items of property, plant and equipment. The Company has not pledged any 
item of property, plant and equipment as security for liabilities. The fair value of the company�s buildings is in line 
with the carrying amount. However, revaluation of the buildings are done at management discretion. 

    N'000

  

  
 At 31 December 2017   11,489

 Amortisation 
 At 1 January 2016    9,707

  

 Charge for the year   588

 Charge for the year   733

 At 31 December 2017   11,028
 

   

 At 31 December 2016   10,440
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Carried forward    1,357,364 487,287

17 Construction Contracts In Progress

Construction contracts in progress, net position  1,357,364 487,287

   2017 2016

Retention asset is reported as part of trade receivables.

15 Unquoted Investment

There was no inventory write-off during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

   870,077 (81,831)

Amounts due from customers for contract work   1,357,364 487,287

 

Recognised profits   743,930 734,851

Current   1,243,065 299,419

 

Arbico Plc acquired 2,000,000 units of ordinary shares of N1 each in Home Trust Limited, which is involved in 
building and management of properties, in 2006. As at 31 December 2014, Arbico Plc holds less than 20% of the 
equity interest of Home Trust Limited. Home Trust Limited is a private entity that is not listed on any public exchange. 
In line with IAS 39.46c, the investment is measured at cost since the Company�s equity is not quoted in an active 
market and the fair value of the asset cannot be reliably measured. The company has no intention to dispose this 
investment in the foreseeable future.

Construction materials      31,075  11,497

     N'000  N'000

Total income and expense recognised under IAS 11 on contract in progress in the year 

Aggregate amount of costs incurred and   

Costs incurred for period    4,147,982 2,678,614

Contract revenue for the period    4,891,912 3,413,465

recognised profits (less losses) to date  4,985,196 7,394,407

 

     2017  2016

 Less progress billings and advances  (4,021,835) (3,495,296) 

 At 31 December 2017    461 

16 Inventories

Brought forward    487,287 569,118   

   N'000 N'000

Amounts due to customers for contract work   - -   

Retention assets   387,249 429,426

Advances received: 

Non-current   - 166,541

14 Intangible Assets (cont’d)
    Computer software
    N'000
 Carrying value:
 At 31 December 2016    1,049
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 Impairment of receivables (Note 18.3)   (28,609) (28,609)   

For terms and conditions relating to receivables from related parties, see Note 24.

     2017 2016
     N’000 N’000

18 Trade and other receivables

 Contract receivables    1,120,257 1,100,748
 Retention receivable    387,249 429,426

 

 Due from related party (Note 18.1)   22,436 13,309

     1,501,333 1,514,874
  Other receivables (Note 18.2)   690,648 434,635

     2,191,981 1,949,509

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 - 365 day terms.

There was no impairment on trade and other receivables as at the end of the reporting period. Impairment of trade 
receivables is based on management�s assessment of the credit quality of individual customers, receivables that are 
in dispute, financial standing of customers and the willingness of the customer to pay. Based on management 
assessment, no event has occurred since the initial recognition of these assets that may give rise to any objective 
evidence of impairment. 

As at 31 December 2017, the ageing analysis of contract and retention receivables is as follows:

    Neither past due Past due but 

     690,648 434,635

18.1 Due from related party    2017 2016

 Deposit for letter of credit with Wema Bank   20,993 -

     0-1 year 1-3 year

 

 Tranos Contracting Limited   22,436 13,309

See Note 25 on credit risk of trade receivables to understand how the company manages and measures credit quality 
of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired.

 Deposit for materials    162,085 36,398

   Total nor impaired not impaired

 2016  1,501,565 - 1,501,565 -

 For terms and conditions relating to due from related party, refer to Note 24.

 Withholding tax receivable   471,207 371,886

     N'000 N'000

   

Staff receivables relates to short-term advances granted to employees of the Company for travelling and business 
expenses. The advances are expected to be retired within one year.

18.2 Other receivables

   

     2017 2016

   N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000

 Staff receivable    5,203 572

 Service receivable    11,160 25,779

     N'000 N'000

 2017  1,478,897 - 1,478,897 -

 Sub-contractor    20,000 -
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 At 31 December 2016     28,609 28,609

     Individually

18.3  Impairment of trade receivables 

Withholding tax receivable (WHT) represent amount deducted at source by customers from payment to the 
Company in line the withholding tax law. The customer is expected to remit the amount withheld to the relevant tax 
authority and obtain withholding tax credit note in the name of Arbico Plc. The WHT credit note can be used to offset 
future tax liability.

 As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables amounting to N0million were impaired (2016: N28.609million). See  
below for the movement in the impairment/utilisation of trade receivables.

     impaired Total

 
     N'000 N'000

 At 1 January 2017    28,609 28,609
 Charge for the year     - -

19 Prepayments    2017 2016
     N'000 N'000

 Rent    2,635 1,667
 Insurance    2,405 3,214

 The operating leases in place did not meet definition of a non-cancellable operating lease.

   

 Short-term deposits    11,095 -
 Restricted cash    125,750 107,078

 Cash at bank    273,289 178,010
 Cash in hand    563 625

     N'000 N'000

     410,697 285,713
   

     5,040 4,881
   

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates which ranges from 2% to 2.5%. 
Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the 
immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term rates. Included in cash 
at bank is restricted cash relating to amount withheld by banks as security for advance payment guarantee provided 
by the two banks for contractual advance received from customers: 2017 N125.75 million (2016: N107.08 million). 
The restriction on this amount is lifted when the advance  payment guarantee is released on achievement of certain 
milestones on the contracts.

20 Cash and bank balance   2017 2016

   

 Cash and cash equivalents   2017 2016
     N'000 N'000

 Cash in hand    563 625

 

 Cash at bank    273,289 178,010

 For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of following: 

     284,947 178,635

 Short-term deposits    11,095 -
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      1,985,949 1,395,143

21 Issued capital and reserves  
   

 Issued and fully paid  

 Share Premium  
 As at 31 December     141,184 141,184

In 2014, a decision was taken by the directors of Biswal Limited to convert N1,950,000,000 of the amount due from 
Arbico Plc into equity through acquisition of more share capital in the later. However, due to the inability of Arbico 
Plc to meet necessary regulatory requirement such as increase in authorised share capital, registration of increase in 
share capital and allotment of shares, the amount was recognised as deposit for shares in the book of Arbico Plc.

 Authorised  

   

 Nature and purpose of reserves

 150,000,000 Ordinary shares of 50K each   75,000 75,000

 148,500,000 Ordinary shares of 50k each   74,250 74,250

 Asset revaluation surplus
 Asset revaluation surplus is used to recognise surplus or deficit on revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
  

22 Share deposit

23 Trade and other payables   2017 2016
     N'000 N'000  
  
 Trade payables     96,908 35,473
 Other payables (Note 23.1)   524,027 669,195
 Due to related parties (Note 23.2)   1,365,014 690,475

   

   

23.1 Other payables     2017 2016
      N'000 N'000  

  Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities: 

 For terms and conditions relating to due to related parties, refer to Note 24.

 Pension payable    18,295 19,205
 Other taxes payable    381,902 251,364

 Accruals    102,505 301,297

      524,027 669,195

 
 Other taxes payable include Pay-As-You-Earn (PAYE), value added tax payable and withholding  tax payable.

 Industrial training fund    3,071 2,786

   

 Service providers payable    18,254 94,543

 Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months.

 Accruals are with respect to job done by sub-contractors for which project certificate/invoices have not been 
received as agreed milestones have not been reached.

   

 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms.
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 R28 Limited  2017 - - (307,258)

R28 Limited

   2016 - - (307,258)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related party

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the 
relevant financial year (for information regarding outstanding balances at 31 December 2016 and 2015, refer to 
Notes 18.1 and 23.2      

    related parties charge related parties

 R28 Limited    307,258 307,258

24 Related party transactions

   2016 47,285 - (383,217)

Tranos Contracting Limited

Biswal Limited is owned by one of the Directors of Arbico Plc, Adebisi Adebutu.

    N'000 N'000 N'000

 Nature of related party transactions

     1,365,014 690,475

    of Arbico by  Rent/service from/(owed to)     

 Tranos Contracting Limited  2017 - 9,127 22,436
   2016 - 1,557 13,309
 

At the start of the re-engineering process in August 2010, the Board of directors approved that intervention fund be 
received from Biswal Ltd and R28 both being related parties companies. The Board decision was based on the fact 
that at that time the Company lacked pedigree and goodwill to approach financial institutions and the capital 
market was not an option because the Company was then on technical suspension. However there was urgent need 
to procure modern equipment to meet current trends in the construction industry. As at reporting date, 31 
December 2017 total intervention fund received for purchase of equipment and settlement of bank loans from both 
parties stood at N2.3billion (2016: N2.3 billion). Of this amount, N1.950billion received from Biswal Limited is meant 
to be deposit for shares (See Note 22). 

 Biswal Limited  2017 674,539 - (1,057,756)

  Biswal Limited

One of the directors of Arbico Plc has a non-controlling interest in Tranos Contracting Limited.

  

 

 Biswal Limited    1,057,756 383,217

Entity with control over the Company

    Payments on behalf  Amounts due      

R28 Limited owns 69.97% of the ordinary shares in Arbico Plc (2016: 69.97%).

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have 
been no guarantees provided for any related party payables. 

23.2 Due to related parties    2017 2016
     N'000 N'000  
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 Short-term employee benefits     - -

 The directors were not remunerated during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company. 
    2017 2016

     N'000 N'000  

   
 Total compensation     - -
   

25 Financial Risk Management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings, amount due to customers for 
contract work and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the 
Company's operations. The Company's financial assets include trade and other receivables, amount due from 
customers on contract work, investments and cash and short-term deposits. 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Ÿ Credit Risk
Ÿ Liquidity Risk
Ÿ Market Risk

a. Overview

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and 
agrees policies for managing each of these risks.
This note presents information about the Company�s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company�s objectives, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk.

           

     N’000 N’000

Trade receivables     1,720,774 1,514,874

     2017 2016

Cash at bank and short-term deposits   410,697 285,713
Amount due from customers for contract work  1,357,364 487,287

 

Credit risk

The company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located 
in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value stated below:

Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

     3,490,835 2,289,874

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily 
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks.

Unquoted investment    2,000 2,000
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Financial instrument and cash deposit 
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's finance department in 
accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties 
and with credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company�s maximum exposure to credit risk for the 
components of the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is the carrying amount as 
illustrated in Note 20.

 Trade and other receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company�s established policy, procedures and 
control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit limits are established for all customers based on internal 
rating criteria. Credit quality of the customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard. The 
requirement for an impairment is analysed at each reporting date on an individual basis for each client. Based on 
management assessment, no event has occurred since the initial recognition of these assets that may give rise to any 
objective evidence of impairment. 

  demand 3 months months  years years Total

  - - 1,604,045 - - 1,604,045

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, 
such as equity price risk and commodity risk. The Company is exposed to currency risk and   insignificant interest rate 
risk. Financial instruments affected by currency risk include cash and short term deposit, trade and other receivables 
and trade and other payables.

Trade and other payables   - - 1,604,045 - - 1,604,045

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Company�s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 
losses or risking damage to the Company�s reputation.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company�s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates 
relates primarily to the Company�s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different 

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of 
trade payables and related party funding. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to 
refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. 

 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets 
disclosed in Note 18.

Year ended 31 December 2017      

   

Market risk

  On Less than 3 to 12 1- 5 >5 

 Liquidity risk

Amounts due to customers for contract work - - - - - -

Year ended 31 December 2016
Trade and other payables  - - 1,143,779 - - 1,143,779

  - - 1,143,779 - - 1,143,779

Foreign currency risk
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 2017  +5%  63 

 2016  +5% 188

   Change in EURO rate Effect on profit before tax 

    N000

   -5% (188)

currency from the Company�s presentation currency). Management has set up a policy requiring the Company to 
manage its foreign currency risk against its functional currency. To manage its foreign currency risk arising from 
future commercial transaction and recognised asset and liabilities, the Company ensures that significant transaction 
is contracted in the functional currency. 

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, Euro and GBP exchange 
rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company�s profit before tax is due to changes in the 
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. 

   Change in USD rate Effect on profit before tax 

   -5%  (63) 

  

    N000
 2017  +5% 85
   -5% (85)

 2016  +5% 46
   -5% (46)
   
   Change in POUNDS rate Effect on profit before tax
    N000
 2017  +5% 2
   -5% (2)
   

Total financial assets  3,490,835 - 3,490,835

The table below show financial instruments by their measurement bases:

   

Amount due from customers 

As at 31 December 2017  Amortised cost Fair value Carrying value

 2016  +5% 37

Trade and other receivables  1,720,774 - 1,720,774

   -5% (37)

    

Unquoted investment  2,000 - 2,000

  

Total financial liabilities  1,604,045 - 1,604,045
  

  N’000 N’000 N’000   

Cash and short-term deposits  410,697 - 410,697

Trade and other payables  1,604,045 - 1,604,045

for contract work  1,357,364 - 1,357,364
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The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables 
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short- term maturities of these instruments.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company�s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure 
that it meets short term obligations to creditors and related parties providing funding support. 

 Gearing ratio (%)   93% 94%
  

   

27 Fair value measurement of financial assets and liabilities

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 
December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016  Amortised cost Fair value Carrying value

for contract work  - - -

for contract work  487,287 - 487,287 

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The 
company�s policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 40% and 50%. The Company includes within net debt, trade 
and other payables less cash and short-term deposits. 

    2017 2016

Unquoted investment  2,000 - 2,000

 Trade and other payables (Note 23)   1,985,949 1,395,143

Trade and other receivables  1,577,623 - 1,577,623
Cash and short-term deposits  285,713 - 285,713

  N’000 N’000 N’000   

Amount due from customers 

Total financial assets  2,352,623 - 2,352,623
  

Trade and other payables  1,143,779 - 1,143,779
Amounts due to customers 

Total financial liabilities  1,143,779 - 1,143,779

26 Capital management

The primary objective of the Company�s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and 
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its 
capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or 
issue new shares.

    N'000 N'000
   

 Less cash and short-term deposits (Note 20)   (410,697) (285,713)
   

   
 Equity    127,154 65,493
   

 Net debt    1,575,252 1,109,430

 Capital and net debt    1,702,406 1,174,923
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   Number  Number

Management    7 7

   2017 2016

Revenue from external customers in Nigeria   4,891,912 3,413,465

Non � current operating assets in Nigeria   1,306,685 1,139,750

Non- current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, unquoted investment and intangible 
assets.

Other than items that are measured at fair value upon initial recognition, no assets or liabilities are subsequently 
measured at fair value in the financial statements. In addition, the fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
subsequently measured at amortised cost approximate their carrying value at the end of the reporting period. 
Hence, no fair value disclosure is provided in the financial statements.

The company�s activities are concentrated in one geographic region. The company's primary format for segment 
reporting is based on business segments. The business segments are determined by management based on the 
Company's internal reporting structure. Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a 
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

The company operates as a single reporting segment and information on these financial statements have been 
reported for the Company as a whole.

The company does not have any major customer that amount to 10% or more of the revenue 

   N’000  N’000

29 Information relating to employees

The average number of persons employed by the company during the financial year was as follows

28 Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the company that is engaged either in providing related products or 
services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment 
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

   2017 2016

Construction    163 163

   193 193

Administrative staff    23 23
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Naira   Number Number

 150,001 - 200,000   - -
 200,001 - 350,000   - -

 420,001 - 500,000   5 5

 130,001 - 150,000   - -

Employees of the Company, other than directors, whose duties were wholly or mainly discharged in Nigeria, 
received remuneration in the following ranges; 

 

 500,001 - 600,000   34 34
 600,001 - 650,000   10 10
 650,001 - 750,000   20 20

 1,200,001 - 2,000,000   23 23
 2,000,001 - 2,600,000   19 19

 350,001 - 400,000   20 20

   2017 2016

 2,600,001 - 3,500,000   12 12

 750,001 - 1,200,000   37 37

 400,001 - 420,000   - -

 Advance payment guarantee � First Bank of Nigeria  349,802  349,802

No events or transactions have occurred since the end of the reporting period, which would have a material effect 
upon the financial statements at that date or which need to be mentioned in the financial statements in order to 
make them not misleading as to the financial position or results of operations.

32 Events After The Reporting Period

 

  

   

   2017 2016

 4,500,001 and Above   3 3

 Executive    3 3

 3,500,001 - 4,500,000   10 10

 Directors mix   2017 2016
    Number Number

    

   N’000  N’000

    7 7

30 Contingent Liabilities

Advance payment guarantee � First City Monument Bank 323,093 323,093

 Advance payment guarantee � United Bank for Africa  311,635 311,635
 Performance bond � Guaranty Trust Bank  67,812 67,812

   1,052,342 1,052,342

 Non-Executive   4 4

31 Capital Commitment

The above guarantees and performance bond are for the benefit of various customers and are held with the 
financial institutions highlighted above. 

    

 

    193 193

In the opinion of the directors, there were no capital commitments at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

To Provide for Growth and Maintenance:   

Retained profit/(loss) for the year 61,661 10 (7,693) (2)

   571,578 100 473,173 100

Salaries and wages 220,830 39 193,729 41

VALUE ADDED 571,578 100 473,173 100

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 242,982 43 235,209 50

Bought in material and services (4,433,579)  (3,001,572)

   458,333  411,893

   2017 % 2016 %

  

Other operating income 113,244  61,280

   N�000  N�000
   

 

REVENUE 4,891,912  3,413,465

   

To Pay Employees:
   

To Pay Government:   

Applied as follows:   

Taxation  45,517 8 51,195 11
   

Amortisation of intangible asset 588 1 733 -

Value added represents the wealth which the Company has been able to create by its own and its employee's efforts. This 
statement shows the allocation of that wealth among employees, capital providers, government and that retained for 
future creation of wea  
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   2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

ASSETS

Share capital  74,250 74,250 74,250 74,250 74,250

Total assets  5,351,996 3,927,791 4,532,183 4,457,453 2,501,728

   N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Non-current assets  1,355,839 1,188,904 1,306,800 1,468,586 1,231,121
Current assets  3,996,157 2,738,887 3,225,383 2,988,867 1,270,607
  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share premium  141,184 141,184 141,184 141,184 141,184
Asset revaluation surplus  861,934 861,934 861,934 861,934 861,934

 
Total equity  127,154 65,493 73,186 (198,048) 54,945
 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities  1,950,000 2,116,541 2,116,541 2,115,217 69,530

 
Total liabilities  5,224,842 3,862,298 4,458,997 4,655,501 2,446,783

Accumulated losses  (950,214) (1,011,875) (1,004,182) (1,275,416) (1,022,423)

 
Total equity and liabilities  5,351,996 3,927,791 4,532,183 4,457,453 2,501,728
 

Current liabilities  3,274,842 1,745,757 2,342,456 2,540,284 2,377,253

Revenue  4,891,912 3,413,465 4,516,384 3,717,604 3,350,612 

Operating profit/ (loss)  106,839 39,898 332,813 (246,117) 295,914

Value added represents the wealth which the Company has been able to create by its own and its employee's efforts. This 
statement shows the allocation of that wealth among employees, capital providers, government and that retained for 
future creation of wealth.

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (Naira)  0.42 (0.05) 1.83 (1.70) 1.88

Income tax expense   (45,517) (51,195) (70,488) (7,380) (19,140)
Profit/(loss) for the year  61,661 (7,693) 271,234 (252,993) 278,493

for the year, net of tax  61,661 (7,693) 271,234 (252,993) 278,493

Profit/(loss) before tax   107,178 43,502 341,722 (245,613) 297,633

Total comprehensive profit/(loss)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
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SHARE HISTORY
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF ARBICO PLC

PROXY FORM

 Please indicate with �X� in the 
appropriate space above how you wish 
your votes to be cast on the Resolutions 
set above. Unless otherwise instructed the 
proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his 
discretion.

4.  Election of members of the Audit 
Committee.

1 Presentation of audited financial 
statements for the year ended 31 
December 2017 and the reports of the 
Directors and Auditors thereon;

2.  Retirement of Directors by rotation 
and the election of Directors in place 
of those retiring;

RESOLUTIONS

3.  Appointment and fixing of 
remuneration for the Auditors; and

FOR AGAINSTI/We*

of
being a member/members of ARBICO PLC
hereby appoint**

of

Dated this day of   2018

Shareholder�s Signature

NOTE

or failing him/her the Chairman of the Company as my/our 
proxy to act and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on the 
7th of June 2018 and at any adjournment thereof.

I. A Member (Shareholder) entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy instead of him/her. All 
proxy forms should be deposited at the Company Secretary�s office not later than 48 hours before the time of holding of the meeting.

ii. In the case of joint Shareholders, any of such may complete the form, but names of all joint Shareholders must be stated.

iv. Provision has been made on this form for the Chairman of the Company to act as proxy. But if you wish, you may insert in the blank space on 
the form (marked**) the name of any person weather a Member of the Company or not. who will attend the meeting and vote on your 
behalf instead of the Chairman.

iii. If the Shareholder is a corporation, this form must be under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorized

v. The proxy must produce the Admission Slip with the notice of Meeting to obtain entrance to the meeting.

ADMISSION SLIP

Before posting the above form, please tear off and return this part for admission to the meeting

Admission Slip must be produced by the shareholder or his proxy in order to obtain entrance to the Annual General Meeting.

Name & Address of Shareholders

(Secretaries)

ARBICO PLC which will hold at Plot D, Block 7, Industrial Crescent Ilupeju.

Olaniwun Ajayi LP

Please admit         to the Annual General Meeting of 

The Adunola | Plot L2, 401 close Banana Island Ikoyi, Lagos

TO BE HELD ON THURSDAY 7 JUNE 2018
PLOT D, BLOCK 7, INDUSTRIAL CRESCENT, ILUPEJU, LAGOS AT 11.00AM
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E-DIVIDEND
MANDATE FORM  

E-mail Address:

358 Herbert Macaulay Way

Bank Account Number:

Bank Branch Address:

Cardinal Stone (Registers) Limited

Bank Branch:

Current Postal Address:

Mobile No(s):

Surname/Company's Name:

Tel: 01 279 3030 

Yaba Lagos

Mandate Form for E-Dividend Payment 

Other Names (for Individual Shareholders):

I/We hereby request that from now on, all dividends due or which may be due to me/us from my/our 
 holding in Arbico Plc., be paid directly to my/our Bank Account named below: 

To:           

Name of Bank:

Bank Sort Code:

Shareholder's Right Signature or Thumbprint

BANK AUTHORISED SIGNATURE AND BANK STAMP

Corporate Shareholder: 

Authorized Signature(s)

Company Seal/Incorporation Number (Corporate Shareholder) 

PLEASE COMPLETE AND RETURN TO THE REGISTRARS
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ARBICO PLC
Building & Civil Engineering Contractors

Plot D, Block 7, Industrial Crescent
Ilupeju, Lagos, Nigeria

 info@arbico.ng  |  E: www.arbico.ng


